COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT ROBERT SMALLS COMPLEX 100 RIBAUT ROAD

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1228 BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29901-1228

TELEPHONE: (843) 255-2180 www.beaufortcountysc.gov

ASHLEY M. JACOBS COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

> SARAH W. BROCK CLERK TO COUNCIL

STEWART H. RODMAN CHAIRMAN

D. PAUL SOMMERVILLE VICE CHAIRMAN

COUNCIL MEMBERS

MICHAEL E. COVERT GERALD DAWSON BRIAN E. FLEWELLING YORK GLOVER, SR. CHRIS HERVOCHON ALICE G. HOWARD MARK LAWSON LAWRENCE P. MCELYNN JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, JR.

AGENDA FINANCE COMMITTEE Wednesday, September 18, 2019 1:00 p.m.

Executive Conference Room, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort

Committee Members: Joseph Passiment, Chairman Chris Hervochon, Vice Chairman Gerald Dawson Mark Lawson Paul Sommerville

Staff Support: Suzanne Gregory, Employee Service Director Alicia Holland, CPA, Assistant County Administrator, Finance

- 1. <u>CALL TO ORDER 1:00 p.m.</u>
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- 3. INTRODUCTIONS

[Public notification of this meeting has been published, posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act]

- 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
- 5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
 - A. August 12, 2019 (backup)
- **6.** <u>CITIZEN COMMENTS</u> (Comments regarding agenda items only)
- 7. EXECUTIVE SESSION
 - A. For receipt of legal advice regarding the expenditure of Impact Fees for proposed road safety improvements on Jenkins Island / Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney
 - B. Discussion of proposed purchase of properties and issues incident thereto (properties Pineview Fee Simple, 2019E, 2019H and 2019I) / Eric Greenway, Community Development Director and Barbara Holmes, RCLPP Contractor
 - C. Receipt of legal advice regarding delinquent Stormwater Fees Brittany Ward, Assistant County Attorney
 - D. Discussion of proposed purchase of properties and issues incident thereto (Gray Family Property) John O'Toole, Executive Director BCEDC
- 8. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION





9. ACTION ITEMS

- A. A Resolution authorizing an exemption of property from ad valorem taxation Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney (backup)
- B. A Resolution approving the expenditure of the 2006 1 Cent Transportation Sales
 Tax Program Remaining Funds Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney and Robert
 McFee, PE, Division Director Construction, Engineering and Facilities (backup)
- C. Change Order #1 to Savannah Construction's contract for the relocation of the Historic Latrine for the Fort Fremont Interpretive Center, increasing the current contract price by \$54,603.88 Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager (backup)
- D. Consideration of an Ordinance to appropriate \$2,506,069.00 from the South Beaufort County service area road impact fees for the US 278 safety improvements project across Jenkins Island with \$2,295,688.00 coming from the Hilton Head Island/Daufuskie Island road impact fees fund and \$210,381.00 coming from the Bluffton impact fees fund Rob McFee, Division Director, Construction, Engineering & Facilities (backup)
- E. Request for \$10,000 for the Hilton Head Island Concours D'elegance & Motoring Festival (backup)

10. DISCUSSION

- A. An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a Fee Agreement between Beaufort County and Project Burnt Church Distillery John O'Toole, Executive Director, Economic Development Corporation (backup)
- B. Request for Qualifications for Coordinated Comprehensive Master Planning Services between Beaufort County and the Town of Port Royal - Robert Merchant, Community Development Deputy Director (backup)
- C. An Ordinance establishing the Finance Committee as the Internal Audit Committee Chris Inglese, Deputy County Attorney (backup)
- **D. Rollback Millage Verification status update** Alicia Holland, Assistant County Administrator, Finance

11. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

- **A.** Beaufort County Airport Wetlands Mitigation FAA Reimbursement Jon Rembold, Beaufort County Airports Director (backup)
- **B.** Act 223 of the 2018 Boat and Watercraft Taxation Jim Beckert, Beaufort County Auditor

12. ADJOURNMENT



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Approval of Minutes
Council Committee:
Finance Committee
Meeting Date:
September 18, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Issues for Consideration:
Approval of minutes from the August 12, 2019
Points to Consider:
Funding 9 Lightlity Fostors
Funding & Liability Factors:
None.
Council Options:
Approve, Modify or Reject
Recommendation:
Approve

MINUTES FINANCE COMMITTEE

August 12, 2019

Executive Conference Room, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort, South Carolina 29902

The electronic and print media duly notified in accordance with the State Freedom of Information Act.

ATTENDANCE

Present: Committee Chairman Joseph Passiment, Committee Vice Chairman Chris

Hervochon, and members Mark Lawson, Paul Sommerville and Gerald Dawson

Absent:

Ex-officio: Stewart Rodman, Michael Covert, Lawrence McElynn, Brian Flewelling, York

Glover, and Alice Howard. (Non-committee members of Council serve as ex-

officio members and are entitled to vote.)

Staff: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator; Marie Smalls, Director of Voter

Registration and Election; Alicia Holland, Assistant County Administrator-Finance; Dave Thomas, Purchasing Director; Jon Rembold, Beaufort County Airports Director; Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager; Tom Keaveny, County Attorney; Chris Inglese, Deputy County Attorney; Brittany Ward, County Attorney; Jim Beckert, County Auditor; Monica Spells, Assistant County Administrator; Philip Foot, Assistant County Administrator; Suzanne Gregory,

Employee Services

CALL TO ORDER

Councilman Passiment called the meeting to order at 12:59 p.m.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Council Passiment asked Clerk to Council Sarah Brock confirmed that this meeting was properly posted and distributed. Clerk to Council agreed.

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Hervochon, seconded by Councilman Dawson to approve the agenda. The vote: YAYS – Councilman Hervochon, Councilman McElynn, Councilman Covert, Councilman Passiment, Councilman Sommerville, Councilman Flewelling and Councilman Dawson. The motion passed.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

April 29, 2019 May 6, 2018 May 28, 2019 June 3, 2019 June 24, 2019

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Hervochon, seconded by Councilman Sommerville to approve the agenda. The vote: YAYS – Councilman Hervochon, Councilman McElynn, Councilman Covert, Councilman Passiment, Councilman Sommerville, Councilman Flewelling, Councilman Lawson and Councilman Dawson. The motion passed

CITIZEN COMMENTS

Mr. Craig Malloy stated that he wanted to discuss the June meeting that was held about the DSN program. He stated that he is not in agreeance with how the program was set up such as the procurement and how contract employees are paid. Mr. Malloy stated that he sent an email to County Council members and Clerk to Council Sarah Brock with information on this.

Councilman Passiment advised Mr. Malloy to contact Ashley Jacobs County Administrator with specific questions that he would like addressed.

ACTION ITEMS

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / Approval of a resolution Authorizing County Administrator to execute an MOA with the State Elections Commission for new voter machines</u> – Marie Smalls, Director of Voter Registration and Elections

Discussion: Marie Smalls stated she is coming before the board to get approval of additional funds for fiscal year 2021 for the new voting machines. The amount needed for the maintenance contract will be \$31,000.

Councilman Hervochon asked is that amount based on the number of machines.

Marie Smalls stated it was because of the increase in machines.

Council Flewelling asked was there going to be any state funding or reorganization available for the additional precincts in the Bluffton area.

Marie Smalls stated there is reorganization being done now to spread out the current employees. In 2020 there will be additional locations available and the funds for that is available within their current budget.

Councilman Covert asked how the new machines will be able to identify and distinguish each person's vote, does it have a serial number.

Marie Smalls, stated that the new machines will not maintain the votes. The votes will be held on a tabulator/scanner that will be in each precinct. That each vote will have a bar code printed on the paper that is specific for that voter. This will be unable to be read by anyone or tracked.

Chris Inglese, Deputy County Attorney stated that Association of County and State elections Committee held a meeting and the suggestion was that the cost was not an appropriations clause. The counties are responsible for paying for holding the elections and the state elections commission is responsible for picking out the statewide voter's registration system.

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Hervochon. Seconded by Councilman Sommerville that County Council authorize administration to enter into an MOA with South Carolina Elections Committee for the new machines and budget for 2021 for cost associated with them. The vote: YAYS - Councilman Hervochon, Councilman McElynn, Councilman Covert, Councilman Passiment, Councilman Sommerville, Councilman Flewelling, Councilman Rodman, Councilman Lawson and Councilman Dawson.

Status: The motion carries.

Item: <u>PRESENTATION / Rollback millage verification</u> – Allen Robinson

Discussion: Allen Robinson stated that his firm was hired to verify and confirm that the millage rates under the rollback formula was correct. That the as changes in assessed values yield to the millage rate. After the firm performed the calculations it was off a tenth of a percent from what the county presented. The firm advised that there is a large erosion from the legal residency exemption, homestead exemption and appeals.

Councilman Flewelling wanted to know if the .10% difference is a higher or lower calculation.

Allen Robinson stated the calculations were for the county and school district. The firm looked into 3 categories: real property, personal property, and motor vehicles. The difference in calculations from the levy was \$356 from real property. They showed that in the personal property the difference is more favorable because small businesses do not file their PT100 tax return on their personal property and there is a penalty put on. Because of this, all the calculations balance out in the end.

Councilman Hervochon asked how many homes converted from the 6% to 4%.

Allen Robinson stated he cannot answer this.

Councilman McElynn asked was there a connection between 865, homestead exemption, and school operations between all 3 of those categories and are they all related.

Allen Robinson stated that yes they are connected.

Councilman Hervochon stated that he doesn't see the erosion condition reasons based on the information that was given in the previous presentation with the Department of Revenue in which they stated that no growth, recession, etc. could be part of the conditions.

Allen Robinson stated it could be all of the reasons he stated.

Councilman Hervochon stated we have not had a recession in 12 years.

Allen Robinson stated that all counties in South Carolina experienced a dip in values in 2013 because all market values dropped. In real property, new houses are at first assessed at 6% and if you are legal resident, you can apply to get 4%. After you reach 65 yrs. old you have to apply for that exemption. Those are the primary exemptions is that we get erosion from legal residence, homestead.

Councilman Hervochon stated so as of right now we cannot quantify the 6% to 4% shift.

Alicia Holland stated that at a meeting in May she provided that information and will get that information again for the council.

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: DISCUSSION / Technical College of the Lowcountry Culinary Institute, LEED Silver Certification - Richard Gough President of Technical College Of the Lowcountry, Mary Lee Carns Vice President for Advancement Technical College of Lowcountry, Chef Jackie, Chef Miles and the Architect on project

Discussion: Richard Gough stated he is coming before the board to give an update and advise on an issue that has presented itself. What is occurring is that they are moving forward with the New River Culinary Lab which is well within the budget. They got through the state approval process and then a problem arouse with the construction documents. There are LEED silver/Green Globe requirements required by the state. When the project was originally put together this process was not required, however now it is required and the amount that was presented was \$750,000 to \$1,000,000 extra. This is a debt that the college would not like to incur on the project. They are going to ask industry participation to assist with this matter.

Mary Lee Carns, stated that they have been talking with the community about this project for over 4 years. The college is \$2.5 million committed to the primary facility, \$800,000 committed to New River facility, \$1.5 million committed to program development. Serge group has committed \$250,000 for equipment which is a huge discount from the original estimate of \$500,000. The school has other investors that has helped with this investments went down from \$974,000 to \$860,000. Mingledorff Incorp., Captive Air of North Carolina, Hilton Head Wine and Food, Serge Group, has been helpful. There is proposals out to Palmetto Electric, US Foods, Cnesta, and Montage Palmetto Bluff, and Dominion Energy wants to provide scholarships. When the project first started 4 years ago the question was never asked of is there something the state would require in the future. They have requested assistance from the Beaufort County School district however

we feel it is likely that they will participate more then they currently are. They will be reaching out to Town of Bluffton to start a conversation with them about project.

Councilman Passiment asked have you approached the Town of Hilton Head.

Richard Gough stated they are looking to strategize before they talk to Hilton Head.

Councilman Rodman stated he wanted to make sure he had everything correct. The college is looking for \$750,000 to \$1 million but because they did not need our original \$500,000, it is \$250,000 to \$500,000 that is needed. Hospitality which helped with around \$3 million and MCIP with \$5 million. Is there any more left in MCIP?

Alicia Holland stated that there is \$8 million in MCIP that will be stretched to make the commitments for state revenue tax funds available each year.

Councilman Rodman stated that without our \$500,000 when you could construction start.

Richard Gough, stated the bid documents can be ready within a couple of months.

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: <u>UPDATE / CAFR Timeline</u> – Alicia Holland, Assistant County Administrator, Finance

Discussion: Alicia Holland, stated we are ahead of schedule for Disability and Special Needs agreed upon procedures.

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: CONTRACT AWARD / Recommendation to award Paul S. Akins Construction Company, Inc., the contract to renovate and build additions to Fire Station #32 for \$1,222,110.00 – Dave Thomas, Purchasing Director

Discussion: Dave Thomas, stated that there was two bids received and after the staff and Bluffton fire district reviewed this it was decided on to go with the Paul S Akins Company. This involves the Callawassie Fire station with renovations, additions and parking spaces.

Councilman Sommerville asked was Bluffton a state charter or county charter.

Dave Thomas stated that it is a county charter

Councilman Flewelling asked what the engineers estimate for the construction?

Dave Thomas stated that it was 1.3 million.

Councilman Flewelling asked does that contract of 1.2 include the contingency

Dave Thomas stated yes of 10%. This is in compliancy with DP participation

Councilman Dawson stated as far as being in compliancy with small business participation, we normally get a list of those small business developer that would be used for construction.

Dave Thomas stated that it is in the bid packet for Atkins Brothers is included however he will make sure it is available in the future

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Sommerville. Seconded by Councilman Covert that council award Paul S. Akins Construction Company, Inc., the contract to renovate and build additions to Fire Station #32 for \$1,222,110.00. The vote: YAYS - Councilman McElynn, Councilman Sommerville, Councilman Covert Councilman Passiment, Councilwoman Howard, Councilman Flewelling, Councilman Rodman, Councilman, Councilman York, Councilman Lawson and Councilman Dawson.

Recommendation: Will be placed on next agenda for approval on next council meeting.

Item: <u>CONTRACT AWARD / Request to Purchase a Public Health Insecticide Applied by Mosquito Control Aircraft for \$208,500.27</u> – Dave Thomas, Purchasing Director

Discussion: Dave Thomas stated this is a sole source purchase because this company is the only company that makes that insecticide. Requesting to move forward to County Council because it is over \$100,000.

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Dawson, Seconded by Councilman Hervochon that council Purchase a Public Health Insecticide Applied by Mosquito Control Aircraft for \$208,500.27. The vote: YAYS - Councilman McElynn, Councilman Sommerville, Councilman Covert, Councilman Hervochon, Councilman Passiment, Councilwoman Howard, Councilman Flewelling, Councilman Rodman, Councilman York, Councilman Lawson and Councilman Dawson

Recommendation: Will be moved to council on next meeting

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / Request for Airport Security Staff</u> – Jon Rembold, Beaufort County Airports Director

Discussion: Jon Rembold stated that we are discussing Hilton Head Island Airport that because we have commercial service we are looked at as part 139, that means we have commercial service. When providing commercial service there is additional regulations which would include federal regulations. TSA regulations that states that we have to designate an airport security coordinator. There is someone already on staff that is completely trained in this and is working as the airport security. We would also like to designate an assistant to the airport security coordinator. Some of the functions of that job are to issues security badges which means you have to go through in depth criminal history background checks. All airport employees and airline employees have to have a security badge. There is also a huge compliance function that is done by this employee. We now have 3 network carriers and we need to have security and backup. In the budget currently it can be

partial covered and also with the airline agreeance that can be worked into their charges and charges.

Councilman McElynn asked if the airport was a fulltime FTE or is this additional duty to someone with a different title.

Jon Rembold stated that unfortunately we are too busy and won't be able to have someone have collateral duty. Since we stepped up the size of the air crafts that we serve we do need a full time employee. That employee is already with us and working the position.

Councilman McElynn stated that they employee's old position will have to be filled. That the new employee will be reimbursed by the Federal government.

Jon Rembold stated that the old positon was back filled and they will be reimbursed by the airlines.

Councilman Passiment asked is more staff going to be needed as the TSA staff as we continues to grow

Jon Rembold stated that we do not staff TSA. This employee will be a county employee that will be in support of the TSA mission, which means security. That we may need more staff in the future because we have employment growth in our offices however we don't know what the future holds. We would like to put the assistant airport security coordinator position out so that we can start accepting applications.

Councilman Passiment stated will this be in addendum to the current contract with the airlines or will we need a new contract.

Jon Rembold stated we have an operating permit right now that will be moved into a formal agreement in the future.

Ashley Jacobs stated that this is for transparency and want to keep council informed of the positions that will be created.

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: DISCUSSION / Update on A-TAX and H-TAX funds

Discussion: Councilman Passiment, stated that he wants to take a look at the ordinance and regarding the 3% state. The 2% state has an application and board that reviews this information. The 3% does not have anything because of this he has created some documents. There are instructions, reporting to be filled out after the entity spends money, application process that must be followed, which is mirrored to the 2% process. There is an expansion of the process and would like the committee and council members to take a look at this.

Councilman McElynn asked if there will be a committee like the other committees like 2%.

Councilman Passiment stated is this something that council will have to look into. County Council will have to decide if a board is necessary. Council needs to look at if the application is going to available online. Which would mean someone in the administration would have to monitor this, get applications, and send it forward. There should be something in place to get this done that needs to get done.

Councilman McElynn asked how many entities apply for this annually

Alicia Holland stated that because there is no formal procedure for they randomly call a council member, and then they are pushed through to the finance committee. There are 3 entities on the agenda today looking for assistance. That the state A-tax board meets once a year. The application process opens up at a certain time and closes at a certain time. They meet once a year and sit down one day and do all who applied gets to do presentation. After this is done they make the recommendation to the finance committee. The local A-tax and local H-tax is seen different that they apply when they need to apply that will happen through during the entire year.

Councilman McElynn stated so they get the application off the website, print off the application, fill it out and submit it and it will send up somewhere for review.

Councilman Passiment stated that will be taken into consideration if you take a look at page 4 of the application process. We have to follow the dates with documentation.

Councilwoman Howard stated that she likes how the city of Beaufort handled the accountability of funds received from other entities, with a process so that no one can double dip.

Councilman Sommerville stated that it is a good idea to think about accommodations tax and hospitality tax where it goes, where it comes from, what decisions was made. On the 2% we have a reserve and we always had a reserve that tends to run around a couple thousand or has it gone in the negative.

Alicia Holland, stated we do not let that go into the negative. The money comes in quarterly from the state. There is generally not a lot of money left in that fund. There is a reserve in the local Tax.

Councilman Passiment, stated that there is a flow chart we should follow because we should know what we have in reserves. What we don't want to do is to make promises of money that is not there.

Councilman Sommerville asked do we want to have a reserve for the 3% and hospitality tax. Does the council want to accumulate money. Is the application first come first serve and if the 2% committee will take the applicants and let them know who to apply for.

Councilman Hervochon stated that he thinks this is a good start however would like the instruction had on it this is what you will expect, proceed, etc. Also, that in the reporting documents would like it detailed out so that we can see exact expenditures.

Councilman McElynn stated is this going to be available throughout the year.

Councilman Passiment, he believes it should be done per fiscal year.

Councilman Rodman, he believes that they should be looked at in some of the ordinances and separate them into 4 ordinances and think that Chris Inglese may have looked into this already.

Councilman Passiment stated that he had and that this was started during budget season however brought it back so that application process that should be a part of the ordinance. Part of the ordinance should answer questions such as should there be a window, when should it be, do you have to your application in by a certain time.

Councilman Flewelling stated that he believes that the funding should be limited with a ceiling of what should be given.

Councilman Lawson stated there should be a way to internal audit so that it is told where all the money went.

Councilman Sommerville stated he agrees that there should be minimum amount saved in that account. However, he doesn't see how there is any talk about accommodations tax without hospitality tax. The definition for both are so similar that there should be a clear understanding about which assistance they can ask for. There needs to be a generic category stating this is the tax you would apply for and this is how you do it.

Councilman Rodman stated what we don't want is to have several people applying for the tax on July 1st because this is a long budget process.

Councilwoman Howard stated that the application process with a deadline is still necessary

Councilman Passiment stated that there will be an application process, reporting process but we need to fill in everything else. Such as do we restrict applying date, is the process rolling, an extending reporting. Since we want to be transparent as possible. Would like to work with several people including Chris Inglese and Alicia Holland to get this process finalized to get it presented back to Council board members.

Councilman McElynn stated that this will fall into community service he will volunteer in getting this process completed

Councilman Passiment stated he would like Councilman Hervochon to also volunteer.

Councilman Hervochon agreed

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: <u>DISCUSSION/ Penn Center A-TAX Funding Request</u> – Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager

Discussion: Stefanie M. Nagid stated that this spring council was given a request for upgrading on Penn Center. The County Council asked that they be giving a priority list to come forward as a request. The priority list was presented that is requesting \$822,000 for upgrading for various structures and professional services that is needed for phase one.

Councilman Flewelling stated will there be any revenue turn over after this is done.

Stefanie M. Nagid stated this is why these was prioritized first because those listed can be revenue generating once they are updated.

Marion Burns, Interim Executive Director for Penn Center stated that the building changed from Lathers Dormitory to Frissell Community House. The last time any major renovations took place in the 90's that Senator Fitz Hollings had required the funds. The renovations are needed so that Penn Center can be positioned for conferences, meeting, etc. to be held there.

Status: Information purposes only

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / Funding Request</u> - Restoration of Historic Campbell AME Church – Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black

Discussion: Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black stated that the mission is to offer love and service to God and the community. They see this project as an addition to assist this church. This is the oldest church house in Bluffton and also 1 of 2 to survive the Burning of Bluffton. The church was purchased by 9 freed slaves and they want to use this to educate and capture the history of Bluffton. Want to use this building for tourism as well as education as a museum. Are asking for funding of phase one of \$250,000. They would like to apply for that new application.

Councilman McElynn asked if the church renovations include using it as a place of worship to anyone in the community.

Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black stated that it won't be a traditional place of service such as Sunday service but a reenactment of services for educational purposes for tourist.

Councilman Covert stated that when the renovations start what is the outcome that is going to be seen.

Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black stated the renovations will be to get the church back to the 1874 look of the church. When tourist/visitors wake into the church they will see history. The original bell of the church is there in the church, people will be able to ring the bell. You will be able to use your smart device, scan the display and hear the story of Lilly who rang the bell of the church.

Councilman Passiment stated so at the moment phase one is \$250,000. Then we will go to phase two and phase three.

Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black states that if government support is given the 1st phase, it is a believe that the other phases will receive assistance through Lowcountry Community Foundation, Darrin Goss, Coastal Community Foundation, Grassroots Effort, and Campbell Chapel Church.

Councilman Covert stated was the Town of Bluffton talked to about a commitment of any finances.

Rev. Dr. Jon R. Black states that they meet with Town of Bluffton last week however they wanted to wait and see what the County Council will do.

Councilman Covert stated that he believes that the Town of Bluffton will wait and see what the county will do first.

Councilman Lawson stated there are people that visit the Historic Campbell AME Church without there being any renovations. If this was done it would bring more tourist to this attraction.

Status: Information purposes only

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / A-Tax Funding Request</u> – Daufuskie Marsh Tacky Society – Erica Veit, Director, Daufuskie Marsh Tacky Society

Discussion: Erica Veit stated that the mission to promote and protect the South Carolina State endangered heritage horse through equid assistance programs that benefit the public. They would like to request \$58,340 to help with the Dale project that would put us through the end of 2020 fiscal year. Would like to do the A-tax request. The Dale property is unimproved and have already raised up money through individual funding. Phase one was about \$33,000 and Phase two is \$51,930. There will be an education center, nature trail, equestrian facility that will teach the public about the Carolina Marsh Tacky horses.

Councilman Flewelling stated that you lease from Beaufort County on property that was purchased through Rural and Critical Land with taxpayer's funded money. What is the lease amount per year?

Erica Veit stated that per the agreement the lease is revenue scale payable to the county for the program to operate, which is at 10% of the net revenue earned exclusively on the Dale property. Also, the payment of the annual property tax is impeded upon the Marsh Tacky Society.

Councilman Sommerville stated will there be an application, presentations, paper handouts done that will communicate the history of the horses.

Erica Veit stated that they will continue with the method that is done on Daufuskie which is signage and printed materials. There is also a show and tell, a lecture, and also hands on experience that is done to give everyone the education about the tacky horses. This society is the only one that has an open barn policy that the public can come in and see the Marsh Tacky up close and personal.

Councilman Sommerville stated how many Marsh Tacky are on the property.

Erica Veit stated that they are capping the number at 16 horses. However, they will be put on a rotation for the seasons. Full time there will be anywhere from 2-4 horses there full-time.

Councilman McElynn stated how much is the total project?

Erica Veit stated that the total is \$116,680 however they are requesting \$58,340 that the other part was raised through individual donors and several sponsors.

Councilman Dawson asked if the business is being moved from Daufuskie to Dale.

Erica Veit stated that the business will kept in Daufuskie however with it being an island Dale is needed as a safe haven due to weather issues. It will be a satellite campus for Daufuskie, since that is the Marsh Tacky Horses historical native habitat. Want to also use the Dale property to help lower the cost of having to pay to get to the Daufuskie.

Councilman Dawson stated so the plan is to be utilized to develop the Dale/Lobeco site.

Erica Veit stated yes just to the Dale/Lobeco area not the Daufuskie site.

Councilman Glover asked if all the horses were certified.

Erica Veit stated that all the horses are pedigree registered Marsh Tacky Horses.

Councilman Glover stated that he believes that the Penn Center should be grandfathered in and moved forward since they have requested this money a long time ago and it has been delayed several times.

Councilman Passiment asked if any council members would like to move this forward on that.

Councilman McElynn stated that he understand about the delay however he does not feel that it is a burden for them and get this done immediately and get it to council

Councilman Passiment stated that he wants to do this and get this on the August agenda. He would like to see this done by the end of August but he believes there should be a record but agrees there should not be any more delays.

Status: Information purposes only.

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / Status update on an ordinance establishing an internal Audit</u>
<u>Committee</u> – Chris Inglese, Deputy County Attorney

Discussion: Councilman Passiment stated we are looking to hire an external auditor to audit the county. Not an employee but an outside company that will come in. Would like to change the ordinance to allow the county to hire an external firm so that we have the ability to make changes to things. There is already a budget for it this year.

Chris Inglese stated that all is needed is the council to decide on what to do.

Councilman Hervochon states that he believed the previous conversation was decided on an external audit firm either partial or fully.

Councilman Passiment stated that administration will look at the standard operating procedures and decide on what we can do better. They would make recommendations and that would be looked into such as staffing or procedures or combinations. Asked if there is an ordinance that maybe need to be deleted.

Council Hervochon stated that instead of deleting the ordinance it should be amended.

Chris Inglese stated do we want to put in an amended ordinance that states the finance committee members to work with staff and select an external auditor and decide on what departments are the priority.

Alicia Holland stated that it should be clarified that this amendment should be clarified as a process improvement not a financial audit.

Councilman Passiment agreed stating that this is an amendment to make things run smoother not submit accusations. That 3 readings is needed because of the altering of the ordinance.

Tom Keaveny stated that we have an ordinance is place that establishes an internal audit unit the council wants to add that an external audit firm will come in to preform process improvement audits. We also need to send out a RFQ (request for quote) to seek input from firms. A discussion needs to be done the committee's and process to establish a process that the audit firm will evaluate. Then set forth a procedure to be available to county council, administration and others.

Councilman York states which audit will be kept an internal, external or both. Should the ordinance be removed or just changed where there is an internal audit as well as external.

Alicia Holland stated that would give administration the ability to use but not make it a requirement as the current ordinance states.

Tom Keaveny quoted the ordinance "it is hereby created an internal audit unit that shall report to the County Administrator and be responsible for the following duties." This can be left in place but also can add to hire for an external audit purpose

Councilman Passiment stated that it should state that it should be optional at the administrators request that an internal audit be done.

Council Hervochon stated that the wording can be tricky and he wants to make sure it is done correctly and without limits so that the external audit has a purpose.

Councilman Flewelling stated that he would like Council Hervochon to work on the wording and present it.

Councilman Hervochon agreed.

Alicia Holland stated that some of what he is looking for is handled in the financial statement audit. That we have a single audit that is done that has more requirements then the state.

Councilman Rodman stated the council should send it forward on the next council

Councilman Passiment stated he agreed

Tom Keaveny stated that it is close to the next meeting however they will try

Status: Information purposes only

Item: <u>DISCUSSION / Salaries of Elected Officials</u>

Discussion: Councilman Passiment has 5 categories of jobs that are elected officials dealing with salaries within the budget.

Councilman McElynn stated that there are 8 categories salaries in question. 5 salaries controlled by the county ordinance and included in the county ordinance is 3 other salaries regulated by state statue. The regulated jobs are Probate Judge and elected official, Master-in Equity appointed official, Magistrate Judges appointed by governor. All of these are regulated by state statue and controlled by the county ordinance. In 2015 the county ordinance stated that the above entry level employees have been using Tier 1 county averages. In 2018 the same company that looked at the salaries and some he believes need to be increased. The ordinance needs to be changed because the Probate Judge, the Master-in Equity and the Magistrate is not state statue. There was no other ordinances about the salaries even with the increase in pay and bonuses that have been done. The present salaries come in below the Tier 1 county salary average except the Sheriff. The census in 2020 will prove the increase in population and also the consideration of the millions of tourist a year.

Councilman Covert stated does the other counties not include state supplement.

Councilman McElynn stated that this is correct because they are all county paid positions. The 3 categories that do get supplement is minor since they have reports that are done with the state supplements. The other counties do this as well and no salaries include this.

Councilwoman Howard stated that when the sheriff took over Emergency response includes how many.

Councilman McElynn stated that this includes dispatch and a lot of responsibility included but no added compensation.

Councilwoman Howard stated this is the only one in the state that has this apply. However, some does include dispatch.

Councilman McElynn stated if you look at some of the other counties are reflecting time in service however he is still lagging behind in pay in comparison.

Councilman Flewelling asked if all the increases was included in the budget for this year.

Alicia Holland stated yes

Councilman York stated that tier 1 and tier 2 is based on population. Is tier 2 over 200,000 people in population?

Councilman McElynn stated that tier 1 is 200,000 people. Beaufort County is tier 2 and by the year 2020 it is believed to reach this population or higher. However, that does not include all the tourist that visit yearly.

Councilman York stated that Berkley is approximant the similar in population.

McElynn stated that our employees are doing more per account in that county.

Councilman Rodman stated that in everything we are a tier 1 county because of all the second home owners, tourist, out of state employees, etc.

Councilman Passiment stated should we a motion for council to do this.

Councilman McElynn stated the ordinance needs 3 readings.

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Hervochon Councilman Dawson, Seconded by Councilman Rodman to amend the current ordinance to reflect the recommended salaries retroactive by July 1. To also clear the language for the state statue to controlling the officials who does not have a County Ordinance. The vote: YAYS -, Councilman Sommerville , Councilman Covert, , Councilman Passiment, Councilwoman Howard, Councilman Flewelling, Councilman Rodman, Councilman York, Councilman Lawson and Councilman Dawson, Councilman Hervochon.

Recommendation: To amend the current ordinance to reflect the recommended salaries retroactive by July 1. To also clear the language for the state statue to controlling the officials who does not have a County Ordinance

ADJOURNMENT

Motion: It was moved by Councilman Hervochon, Seconded by Councilman Flewelling

The meeting adjourned at 3:32

Ratified by Committee:



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Resolution Authorizing Exemption of Property from Ad Valorem Taxation
Council Committee:
Finance
Filiance
Meeting Date:
September 3, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Thomas J. Keaveny, Il County Attorney
Thomas S. Neutony, ii Goung / Montey
Issues for Consideration:
On April 28, 2014, Beaufort County adopted Ordinance 2014-9. This ordinance approved a Development Agreement between Jaz 278, LLC and Beaufort County. The proposed development was Bluffton Gateway Commercial Center. The area to be developed contained a Brownfield site. Under state law, non-responsible parties who remediate Brownfield sites may, if they satisfy all the requirements imposed by the legislature, qualify for an exemption from ad valorem taxes for a period of five years from the year of completion. Article XI.D. of the Development Agreement, Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Exemption, provides that upon issuance of the DHEC Certificate of Completion for the Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Program, Beaufort County shall authorize and approve by resolution the exemption of property from ad valorem taxes as provided by the general laws of the State of South Carolina. DHEC issued the Certificate of Completion in 2015. Jaz 278 LLC is entitled to the exemption under state law and as provided for in the 2014 Development Agreement with Beaufort County.
Points to Consider:
See above.
Funding 9 Liability Factors
Funding & Liability Factors:
None
Council Options:
·
Approval based on contractual obligations.
Recommendation:
Approve

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN EXEMPTION OF PROPERTY FROM AD VALOREM TAXATION

- **WHEREAS,** Jaz 278, LLC is a Georgia Limited Liability Company authorized to conduct business in South Carolina and owner of certain Property consisting of sixty-six and 20/100 (66.20) acres of land known as Bluffton Gateway Commercial Center which is located at 34 Bluffton Road, Bluffton, South Carolina; and
- **WHEREAS,** on July 7, 2014 Jaz 278, LLC and Beaufort County entered into an agreement known as Development Agreement for Bluffton Gateway Commercial Center ("Development Agreement"); and
- WHEREAS, certain parcels of the Property are subject to a Non-Responsible Party Voluntary Cleanup Agreement ("Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Agreement") entered into by Jaz 278, LLC and the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control ("DHEC") pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 44-56-710, et seq. (the "Volunteer Cleanup Program"); and
- **WHEREAS**, the Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Program provides for the exemption of certain ad valorem taxes pursuant to and as more particularly described in South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 12-37-220 (44) ("Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Exemption"); and
- WHEREAS, the Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Exemption provides for a five (5) year exemption from certain ad valorem taxes upon the issuance of Certificate of Completion by DHEC ("DHEC Certificate of Completion") and the subsequent approval by resolution of the appropriate governing body; and
- **WHEREAS,** Beaufort County Council is the governing body contemplated by South Carolina Code of Laws, Section 12-37-220 (44); and
- **WHEREAS,** Jaz 278, LLC has provided Beaufort County with a Certificate of Completion issued by DHEC dated March 16, 2015; and
- **WHEREAS,** Jaz 278, LLC has further provided Beaufort County with copies of Tax Credit Certificates for Expenses Incurred through Brownfield Voluntary Cleanup Program for the years 2013 (\$86,239.94), 2014 (\$105,221.78) and 2015 (\$417,629.29); and
- WHEREAS, Section XI.D. of the Development Agreement provides that the exemption shall be in the form of a refund by the County to the owner within ninety (90) days of the County's receipt of (i) the payment in full of all ad valorem taxes due for the property, (ii) an itemized list with evidence of owner's payment for costs and fees incurred for permitting and the actual cost of demolition, construction, remediation and testing requires to secure the DHEC Certificate of Completion and (iii) a certified copy of the DHEC Certificate of Completion.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that upon presentation of the items enumerated above, Jaz 278, LLC is exempt from ad valorem taxes (and ad valorem taxes only) pursuant to the general laws of the state of South Carolina for a period of five (5) years commencing in 2015.
DONE this day of September, 2019.
COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
By:
Stewart H. Rodman
Chairman
ATTEST:
Sarah Brock

Clerk to Council



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Resolution for 2006 1 Cent Transportation Sales Tax Program Remaining Funds
Council Committee:
Finance
Meeting Date:
September 3, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Thomas J. Keaveny, II, County Attorney and Robert McFee, PE, Division Director Construction, Engineering and Facilities
Issues for Consideration:
In 2015 Beaufort County substantially completed its SC 170 Widening project. This project was part of the 2006 sales tax referendum. As part of the project Beaufort County agreed to install water and sewer casing under SC 170. These casings were not installed and need to be installed now. BJWSA has agreed to perform the work at a cost of approximately \$200,000.
Points to Consider:
The casings were intended to be installed but were omitted.
Funding & Liability Factors:
Remaining 2006 1 Cent Transportation Sales Tax Funds
Council Options:
Approve or disapprove the request.
Recommendation:

Staff recommends Council approve the request.

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, on August 14, 2006, Beaufort County Council adopted a Sales Tax Ordinance which identified ten (10) infrastructure projects with an estimated completion cost of One Hundred Fifty-Two Million Dollars (\$152,000,000) and which called for a voter Referendum on whether the County should proceed with the projects; and

WHEREAS, a Referendum to approve the expenditure of One Hundred Fifty-Two Million Dollars (\$152,000,000) by implementation of a one percent (1%) sales tax was held and approved by Beaufort County voters in November 2006; and

WHEREAS, construction of the projects is complete and a remainder of approximately \$2,272,000.00 exists which must be programmed and expended on the approved projects; and

WHEREAS, on May 13, 2019, Council adopted Resolution 2019-20 which authorizes the County to use the remaining funds to complete several projects which are a part of, and incidental to, the ten (10) projects approved by the voters in November 2006; and

WHEREAS, Council now wishes to add to that list of projects which were previously approved by Resolution 2019-20, the installation of water and sewer casings under the newly widened SC 170 at an anticipated cost of approximately \$200,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that County Council authorizes the expenditure of \$200,000 for water and sewer casings incidental to the widening of SC 170 and further authorizes the County Administrator to execute any and all documents necessary for the completion of the same.

Adopted this	day of September, 2019.
	COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
	By: Stewart H. Rodman,
	Chairman, Beaufort County Council
Attest:	
g 1 D 1	
Sarah Brock	
Clerk to Council	



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item	

Fort Fremont - Savannah Construction Change Order #1

Council Committee:

Finance

Meeting Date:

September 3, 2019

Committee Presenter (Name and Title):

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager

Issues for Consideration:

Change Order #1 to Savannah Construction's contract for the relocation of the historic latrine at Fort Fremont.

Points to Consider:

- 1) Spanish-American War era latrine is within the footprint of the interpretive center construction.
- 2) Friends of Fort Fremont and Council supported the relocation of the latrine in lieu of destruction.
- 3) Savannah Construction is currently under contract for construction of the interpretive center and can conduct the latrine relocation.
- 4) Cost increase only requires Committee level approval.

Funding & Liability Factors:

Change Order #1 will increase the current contract by \$54,603.88 for a total project cost of \$1,084,358.88 (5.3% increase).

Council Options:

1) Approve Change Order #1 or 2) Do not approve Change Order #1

Recommendation:

Approve Change Order #1 to Savannah Construction's contract for the relocation of the historic latrine for the Fort Fremont interpretive center construction project.



Mark Roseneau, Director **Facility Management** 120 Shanklin Road Beaufort, South Carolina 29906

August 20, 2019

Dear Mr. Roseneau,

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for providing our construction services. Our proposed scope of services and associated fee is detailed below.

Project: Ft. Fremont Interpretive Center - Historic Latrine Foundation Relocation Scope of Services: Relocate Slab of Historic Latrine to New Foundation.

Proposal includes all labor, equipment, materials, supervision, insurance and bond fees to complete the scope of work.

Relocation of Historic Latrine Slab to a New Foundation at New Location.

Total: \$54,603.88

Notes:.

- All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to the standard practices.
- Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written change orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the proposal.
- Anything not explicitly included in this proposal is explicitly excluded.
- If roofing repairs are selected rather than replacement, then we can provide such pricing upon review of the structure.
- Price will expire in 30 days.

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you on this project. If you have any concerns about any part of this proposal, please contact me at your convenience.

r. Project Manger | Estimator

Savannah Construction & Preservation, LLC. Blue Fin Circle, Suite 3 | Savannah, Georgia 31410 C: 910-373-8734 | eric@savannah-construction.com



Mark Roseneau
Facility Management
120 Shanklin Road
Beaufort, South Carolina 22906

August 27, 2019

Dear Mark,

Project: FT. FREMONT INTERPRETIVE CENTER

Scope of Services: LATRINE RELOCATION SOV

Proposal includes all insurance, labor, equipment, materials, travel, and supervision to complete the scope of work.

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

•	DEMO WALLS	\$ 7,519.98
•	STEEL (LABOR & MATERIALS) {\$14,573.06}	\$ 14,573.06
•	EXCAVATION (LABOR & MATERIALS)	\$ 8,130.00
•	FOUNDATION MASONRY (LABOR & MATERIALS)	\$ 8,591.65
•	RELOCATE WALLS (LABOR)	\$ 2,634.00
•	CONCRETE	\$ 5,363.54
•	LIFTING EQUIPMENT	\$ 7,791.65

Total: \$ 54,603.88

Notes:

- > All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to the standard practices.
- While Savannah Construction & Preservation, LLC. has had great success with similar projects and will take every precaution to move the Latrine Foundation without incident, as with any project that involves moving a Historic Structure, there is always a chance that it will not survive the move and therefore Savannah Construction and Preservation cannot guarantee that it will.
- > Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written change orders, and will become an extra charge over and above the proposal.
- > Anything not explicitly included in this proposal is excluded.
- > Price will expire in 30 days.

We look forward to the opportunity to work with you on this project. If you have any concerns about any part of this proposal, please contact me at your convenience.

Eric Davenport

CFO | Sr. Project Marger | Estimator Savannah Construction & Preservation, LLC.

200 blue Fin Circle, Suite 3 | Savannah, Georgia 31410 C: 910-373-8734 | eric@savannah-construction.com AN ORDINANCE TO APPROPRIATE \$2,506,069.00 FROM THE SOUTH BEAUFORT COUNTY SERVICE AREA ROAD IMPACT FEES FOR THE US 278 SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT ACROSS JENKINS ISLAND WITH \$2,295,688.00 COMING FROM THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND/DAUFUSKIE ISLAND ROAD IMPACT FEES FUND AND \$210,381.00 COMING FROM THE BLUFFTON IMPACT FEES FUND.

WHEREAS, the South Carolina Code of Laws, §4-9-130, requires public notice and an ordinance to make appropriations of County funds; and

WHEREAS, Beaufort County Council's Rules and Procedures also require public notice and an ordinance for appropriations of County funds; and

WHEREAS, in recent years, there has been a developing safety concern related to the intersection of Windmill Harbor's neighborhood entrance at US Highway 278 and County staff has been engaged in efforts to address the safety concerns; and

WHEREAS, preliminary design for the Jenkins Island safety improvements was submitted and comments received from SCDOT and the Town of Hilton Head Island; and

WHEREAS, the County received three bids for the Jenkins Island safety improvements and the lowest bid for the project, with an 8% contingency, is a total of \$9,687,431.00, and

WHEREAS, the project is within the bounds of the overall US 278 Corridor Project which is expected to begin construction in 2022 or 2023, however it is not known to what extent the Jenkins Island safety improvements will be incorporated into the US 278 Corridor Project;

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2016/32 provided for \$51,000,000.00 in general obligations for the purposes of: (i) defraying the costs of the County Rural and Critical Land Preservation Program, stormwater utility projects, and public safety capital projects; (ii) paying costs of issuance of the Bonds; and (iii) such other lawful purposes as the County Council shall determine; and

WHEREAS, County Council has previously appropriated up to \$7,400,000.00 to the Jenkins Island roadway improvements as one of the public safety capital projects to be funded from the 2017 General Obligations Bond funds; and

WHEREAS, the current available balance in the 2017 General Obligations Bond fund is \$7,181,363.00; and

WHEREAS, the Public Facilities Committee met in a joint committee meeting with the Finance Committee on August 19, 2019 to consider the award of a contract to the lowest bidder, Quality Enterprises; and

WHEREAS, the Public Facilities Committee recommended approval of the award of the contract to Quality Enterprises as recommended by County staff subject to the funding ordinances being approved by Council; and

WHEREAS, County staff recommends \$7,181,363.00 of the project be funded from the 2017 General Obligations Bond fund, and \$2,506,069.00 be funded from the South Beaufort County Impact Fees with \$2,295,688.03 coming from the Hilton Head Island/Daufuskie Island Road Impact Fees fund, and \$210,380.60 coming from the Bluffton Impact Fees fund; and

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of public safety, health and welfare that the Jenkins Island safety improvements be funded and scheduled for construction pursuant to the award of the contract to Quality Enterprises.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by Beaufort County Council, duly assembled, that an amount of \$2,506,069.00 is hereby appropriated from the South Beaufort County Service Area Road Impact Fee fund, with \$2,295,688.03 coming from the Hilton Head Island/Daufuskie Island Road Impact Fees fund, and \$210,380.60 coming from the Bluffton Impact Fees fund to be directed to the cost of the Jenkins Island safety improvements project.

DONE this day of	, 2019.
	COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY
	By: Stewart H. Rodman, Chairman

ATTEST:

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council.

Chronology

- Third and final reading occurred
- Public hearing occurred
- Second reading occurred
- First reading approval occurred
- Committee discussion and ...







Ms. Ashley M. Jacobs County Administrator Post Office Drawer 1228 Beaufort, SC 29901

August 27, 2019

Dear Ashley:

It was nice to meet you at the Hilton Head/Bluffton Chamber of Commerce Business Connection meeting. Your talk was excellent and many of your comments resonated with me, particularly the importance of a of united Economic Development initiative in Beaufort County.

The Hilton Head Island Concours d'Elegance & Motoring Festival, now in its 18th year is one of the top destination events in South Carolina. Our event draws over 20,000 visitors from around the country and was recognized as the top tourism event in 2016 when we received the Governor's Cup for Tourism – the first time an event in Beaufort County has received this prestigious award. One of the top attractions of the Festival are the events taking place at the Hilton Head Airport which include the Flights & Fancy Aeroport Gala and the Aero Expo where we display 25 vintage aircraft paired with Concours cars. The Airport is exposed to potential consumers as well as major businesses who are not aware of the commercial and private aviation service available. We appreciate that Beaufort County recognizes this event as an important showcase for this economic asset and has provided support to offset the operational expenses.

With safety and FAA standards of utmost importance, I would like to again request \$10,000 from Beaufort County to defer the costs of lighting, shuttles, trash collection, restrooms and security. This investment provides critical funds needed to stage these events.

We appreciate the continued support of Beaufort County for this important event.

My Best.

Carolyn Vanagel

President



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Discussion regarding the execution and delivery of a Fee Agreement between Beaufort County and Project Burnt Church Distillery
Court all Courts all the
Council Committee:
Finance Committee
Meeting Date:
September 3, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Issues for Consideration:
Points to Consider:
Backup items include:
Ordinance
Inducement Resolution that was adopted on July 22, 2019
Fee agreement
Funding & Liability Factors:
None.
Council Options:
Approve, Modify or Reject
Recommendation:
Approve

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLIN	NA)	
)	ORDINANCE
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT)	

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FEE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND PROJECT BURNT CHURCH PROVIDING FOR A PAYMENT OF A FEE IN LIEU OF TAXES AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, Beaufort County, South Carolina (the "County") acting by and through its County Council (the "County Council") is authorized and empowered pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act"), to enter into fee agreements with any industry, with said agreements identifying certain properties of such industries as economic development property, through which powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the "State") and the County will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate, remain, and expand in the State and the County and thus utilize and employ the manpower, products, and natural resources and benefit the general public welfare of the State and County by providing services, employment, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; and

WHEREAS, a company current identified as "Project Burnt Church" (referred to hereinafter as the "Company") intends to invest in the establishment of a manufacturing facility in the County through the acquisition of land, a building, and improvements thereon (the "Land and Building"); the construction of improvements thereon and/or therein; and/or the acquisition of personal property, including, but not limited to, machinery, equipment, and furniture to be installed on and/or in the Land and Building, which would constitute a project within the meaning of the Act and which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property, the cost of which is estimated to be \$10,250,000, and which is anticipated to result in the creation of 27 new, full-time jobs in the County, over five years (the "Project"), all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement attached hereto, and provided that approvals of various incentives contemplated for the Project are formalized by the State and/or County; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Inducement Resolution dated as of June 24, 2019, the County authorized the execution of an agreement providing for fee in lieu of tax payments; and

WHEREAS, the Company has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form of the Fee Agreement by and between the County and the Company (the "Fee Agreement"), which provides for fee in lieu of tax payments utilizing a 6% assessment ratio for a period of 20 years for the Project or each component thereof placed in service during the initial investment period; and

WHEREAS, it appears that the Fee Agreement, which is now before this meeting, is in appropriate form and is an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered by the County for the purposes intended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the County Council in a meeting duly assembled as follows:

<u>Section 1</u>. In order to promote industry, develop trade, and utilize and employ the manpower, products, and natural resources of the State of South Carolina by assisting the Company to expand or locate an industrial facility in the State of South Carolina, the Fee Agreement is hereby authorized, ratified, and approved.

Section 2. It is hereby found, determined, and declared by the County Council, as follows:

- (a) The Project will constitute a "project" as said term is referred to and defined in the Act, and the County's actions herein will subserve the purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the Act.
- (b) The Project and the payments in lieu of taxes set forth herein are beneficial to the County, and the County has evaluated the Project based upon all criteria prescribed by law, including the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
- (c) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally.
- (d) The Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either.
- (e) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes.
- (f) The inducement of the location or expansion of the Project within the County and State is of paramount importance.
- (g) The benefits of the Project to the public will be greater than the costs.

Section 3. The form, terms, and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are hereby approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are incorporated herein by reference as if the Fee Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of the County Council and/or the County Administrator are authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and deliver the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the Company. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby approved, with such changes therein as shall not be materially adverse to the County and as shall be approved by the officials of the County executing the same, upon the advice of Counsel to the County, such official's execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of

such official's approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the Fee Agreement now before this meeting.

- Section 4. The Chairman of the County Council and/or the County Administrator, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to the Fee Agreement.
- <u>Section 5</u>. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable, and if any section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder.
- <u>Section 6</u>. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval.

(SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW)

Passed and approved this	_ day of	, 2019.
		BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
		Signature:Name:Title:
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA)	
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT)	
I, the undersigned, Clerk to Count Council"), DO HEREBY CERTIFY:		of Beaufort County, South Carolina ("County
County Council. The Ordinance was of the County Council on least one day passed between first a second and third readings. A public	read and re ,, nd second r hearing wa	d verbatim copy of an Ordinance adopted by the received a favorable vote at three public meetings, and At eading, and at least seven days passed between s held on, and notice of the on At each at and remained present throughout the meeting.
	of Informat	ne meetings of the County Council. The County ion Act, Chapter 4, Title 30 of the S.C. Code of County Council.
The Ordinance is now in full force an	d effect.	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have Council, South Carolina, as of this		et my Hand and the Seal of Beaufort County, 2019.
		Signature:Name:Title: Clerk to County Council

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA)	
)	RESOLUTION NO.: 2019 / 28
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT)	

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR A FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAUFORT COUNTY AND PROJECT BURNT CHURCH

WHEREAS, Beaufort County, South Carolina (the "County"), acting by and through its County Council (the "County Council") is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act"), to enter into a fee in lieu of tax agreement (the "Fee Agreement") with respect to a project which requires the industry to make a payment of a fee in lieu of taxes, through which powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina and the County will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and the County and thus to utilize and employ the manpower, products, and natural resources of the State of South Carolina to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, and other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and

WHEREAS, a company current identified as "Project Burnt Church" (referred to hereinafter as the "Company") intends to invest in the establishment of a manufacturing facility in the County through the acquisition of land, a building, and improvements thereon (the "Land and Building"); the construction of improvements thereon and/or therein; and/or the acquisition of personal property, including, but not limited to, machinery, equipment, and furniture to be installed on and/or in the Land and Building, which would constitute a project within the meaning of the Act and which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property, the cost of which is estimated to be \$10,250,000, and which is anticipated to result in the creation of 27 new, full-time jobs in the County, over five years (the "Project"), all as more fully set forth in the Fee Agreement attached hereto, and provided that approvals of various incentives contemplated for the Project are formalized by the State and/or County; and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the County enter into a Fee Agreement, thereby providing for a fee in lieu of tax ("FILOT") with respect to the Project; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the Company that the Project would be a "project" and "economic development property" as such terms are defined in the Act and that the Project would serve the purposes of the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council as follows:

Section 1. The County Council hereby finds that: (i) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (ii) the Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against its general credit or taxing power; (iii) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes and the inducement of the location of the Project within South Carolina is of paramount importance and the benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the cost (which latter finding has been

made using an appropriate cost-benefit analysis); and (iv) it has evaluated the Project considering all relevant and required factors, including, but not limited to, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment to be made and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County, and all other criteria prescribed by law.

Section 2. The County hereby agrees to enter into a fee in lieu of tax arrangement with the Company under the Act. The County agrees to provide for a fee in lieu of *ad valorem* taxes ("FILOT") for a period of 20 years for each component of the Project placed in service during the investment period (the "FILOT Term") under the Act. The FILOT shall be calculated using a 6% assessment ratio and a fixed millage rate equal to the lowest millage rate allowable under the Act for a period of 20 years for each component of the Project placed in service during the investment period.

Section 3. The further details of the FILOT shall be prescribed by subsequent ordinance of the County to be adopted in accordance with South Carolina law and the rules and procedures of the County.

<u>Section 4.</u> This resolution shall constitute an inducement resolution for this Project within the meaning of the Act.

Section 5. This resolution shall constitute "preliminary approval" pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the Act by which property may be placed in service prior to the execution of a FILOT agreement but still constitute economic development property under the Act.

<u>Section 6.</u> All orders, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage by the County Council.

Adopted this 22nd day of July, 2019.

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Signature: _

Name: Stewart H. Rodman,

Title: Chairman Beaufort County Council

(SEAL) ATTEST:

Signature:

Name: Sarah W. Brock

Title: Clerk to County Council

FEE AGREEMENT

Between

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

and

PROJECT BURNT CHURCH

Dated as of ______, 2019

RECAPITULATION OF CONTENTS OF FEE AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO S.C. CODE §12-44-55(A)	
The parties have agreed to waive this requirement pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 12-44-55(B).	
HSB 5860264 v.1	

FEE AGREEMENT

THIS FEE AGREEMENT (the "Fee Agreement") is made and entered into as of _______, 2019 by and between BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the "County"), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (the "State"), acting by and through the Beaufort County Council (the "County Council") as the governing body of the County, and PROJECT BURNT CHURCH (the "Company").

RECITALS

- 1. Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Act") authorizes the County (i) to induce industries to locate in the State; (ii) to encourage industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, products, and other resources of the State; and (iii) to enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the requirements of such Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development property.
- 2. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project (as defined herein) is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately provided locally; (b) the Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated municipality and to no charge against its general credit or taxing power; (c) the purposes to be accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the Project are greater than the costs.
- 3. The County Council has evaluated the Project based on all relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County.
- 4. An Ordinance that the County Council adopted contemporaneously with the execution of this Fee Agreement (the "Fee Ordinance") authorizes the County and the Company to enter into a Fee Agreement that classifies the Project as Economic Development Property under the Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes, all as further described herein.
- NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

<u>Section 1.1</u> The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

"Act" shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, and all future acts successor or supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof.

1

"Act Minimum Investment Requirement" shall mean an investment of at least \$2,500,000 by the Company of property eligible as economic development property under the Act, provided, however, that in the event of a reduction of the minimum investment level in Section 12-44-30(14) or any successor section by legislative action, then the Act Minimum Investment Requirement shall equal such reduced amount.

"Commencement Date" shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date must not be later than the last day of the property tax year which is three years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee Agreement.

"Company" shall mean PROJECT BURNT CHURCH and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company.

"County" shall mean Beaufort County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as the governing body of the County.

"County Council" shall mean the Beaufort County Council, the governing body of the County.

"Department" shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue.

"Diminution in Value" in respect of the Project or any Phase of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value using the original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.1(a) of this Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project or such Phase and which are subject to FILOT payments which may be caused by (i) the Company's removal and/or disposal of equipment pursuant to Section 4.6 of this Fee Agreement; (ii) a casualty to the Project, such Phase of the Project, or any part thereof, described in Section 4.7 of this Fee Agreement; or (iii) a condemnation of the Project, such Phase of the Project, or any part thereof, described in Section 4.8 of this Fee Agreement.

"Economic Development Property" shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the Act, selected and identified by the Company in its annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300S or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period.

"Equipment" shall mean all of the machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and fixtures, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor used or to be used in the County by the Company for the purposes described in Section 2.2(b) hereof, provided, however, that repairs, alterations, or modifications to personal property which is not economic development property or property subject to a fee in lieu of taxes prior to this Fee Agreement, are not eligible to become Economic Development Property, except for modifications which constitute an expansion of existing real property improvements.

"Event of Default" shall mean any event of default specified in Section 5.1 of this Fee Agreement.

"Exemption Period" shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year after the property tax year in which an applicable piece of Economic Development Property is placed in service and ending on the Termination Date. In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption Period applies to each year's investment made during the Investment Period.

"Fee," "Fee in Lieu of Taxes," "FILOT," or "Payments in Lieu of Taxes" shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of *ad valorem* property taxes as provided herein.

"Fee Agreement" shall mean this Fee Agreement.

"Fee Term" shall mean the period from the date of this Fee Agreement until the Termination Date.

"Improvements" shall mean all improvements to the Real Property, including buildings, building additions, roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor used or to be used in the County for the purposes described in Section 2.2(b) hereof; provided, however, that repairs, alterations, or modifications to real property which is not economic development property or property subject to a fee in lieu of taxes prior to this Fee Agreement, are not eligible to become Economic Development Property, except for modifications which constitute an expansion of existing real property improvements.

"Investment Period" shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five years after the Commencement Date, provided that the Company and the County may agree to a later date pursuant to Section 12-44-30(13) of the Act.

"Phase" or "Phases" in respect of the Project shall mean that the Equipment, Improvements, and/or Real Property of the Project are placed in service during more than one year in the Investment Period, and the word "Phase" shall therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year in the Investment Period.

"Project" shall mean all the Equipment, Improvements, and/or Real Property located on the Real Property in the County and that the Company determines to be necessary, suitable, or useful for the purposes that Section 2.2(b) describes, and first placed in service in calendar year 2019 or thereafter. The Project shall not include existing buildings and improvements on the Real Property, as of the date of the commencement of the Project by the Company, and any machinery and equipment which have previously been subject to South Carolina *ad valorem* taxation.

"Real Property" shall mean real property that the Company uses or will use in the County for the purposes that Section 2.2(b) describes, and generally located on the land identified on Exhibit A hereto, together with all and singular the rights, members, hereditaments, and appurtenances belonging or in any way incident or appertaining thereto.

"Removed Components" shall mean the following types of components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which are subject to FILOT payments, all of which the Company shall be entitled to remove from the Project with the result that the same shall no longer be subject to the terms of the Fee Agreement: (a) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company, in its sole discretion, determines to be inadequate, obsolete, worn-out, uneconomic, damaged, unsuitable, undesirable, or unnecessary pursuant to Section 4.6 hereof or otherwise; or (b) components or Phases of the Project or portions thereof which the Company in its sole discretion, elects to be treated as removed pursuant to Section 4.7(c) or Section 4.8(b)(iii) of this Fee Agreement.

"Replacement Property" shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for any item of Equipment, any Improvement, or any Real Property previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment, any Improvement, or any Real Property, to the fullest extent that the Act permits.

"Sponsor" shall mean an entity that joins with or is an affiliate of, the Company and that participates in the investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the Act to be entitled to the benefits of this Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project.

"Termination Date" shall mean in case the entire Project is placed in service in one year, the end of the last day of the property tax year which is the 19th year following the first property tax year in which the entire Project is placed in service, or in case there are Phases of the Project, the Termination Date shall mean with respect to each Phase of the Project the end of the last day of the property tax year which is the 19th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of the Project is placed in service, provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at least 20 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project and provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the Termination Date is the date of such termination.

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or document.

Section 1.2 The term "investment" or "invest" as used herein shall include not only investments made by the Company, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments made by or for the benefit of the Company in connection with the Project through federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to *ad valorem* taxes or FILOT payments by the Company.

ARTICLE II

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS

- <u>Section 2.1</u> <u>Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County.</u> The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows:
- (a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and acts through the County Council as its governing body. The Act authorizes and empowers the County to enter into the transactions that this Fee Agreement contemplates and to carry out its obligations hereunder. The County has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its obligations hereunder.
- (b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a "project" within the meaning of the Act, and the County is a County that the Act authorizes to enter into fee in lieu of tax agreements with companies that satisfy the Act Minimum Investment Requirement within the County.
- (c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the Act and that the Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from *ad valorem* taxation in South Carolina.
- (d) The millage rate in Section 4.1 hereof is 234.3 mills, the millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project on June 30, 2019, as provided under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the Act. [COUNTY, PLEASE CONFIRM MILLAGE RATE FOR 7/1/18-6/30/19 FISCAL YEAR.]
- (e) The County will not be in default in any of its obligations (contractual or otherwise), including any violation of its statutory debt limit, as a result of entering into and performing under this Fee Agreement.
- <u>Section 2.2</u> <u>Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company</u>. The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows:
- (a) The Company is in good standing under the laws of the State of ______, is duly authorized to transact business in the State of South Carolina, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement.
- (b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a "project" within the meaning of the Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project as a manufacturing facility, and for such other purposes that the Act permits as the Company may deem appropriate.

5

(c) The Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that its investment in Economic Development Property of the Project will exceed the Act Minimum Investment Requirement.

ARTICLE III

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT

<u>Section 3.1</u> <u>The Project.</u> The Company intends to invest in Equipment, Improvements, and/or Real Property, which together comprise the Project and which are anticipated to create at least the Act Minimum Investment Requirement in eligible Economic Development Property investment subject to Payments in Lieu of Taxes in the County.

The parties hereto agree that, to the extent that applicable law allows or is revised or construed to allow the benefits of the Act, in the form of Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes to be made under Article IV hereof, to be applicable to leased assets including, but not limited to a building and/or personal property to be installed in the buildings and leased to but not purchased by the Company from one or more Sponsors under any form of lease, then such property shall, at the election of the Company, be subject to Payments-in-Lieu-of-Taxes to the same extent as the Company's assets covered by this Fee Agreement, subject, at all times, to the requirement of such applicable law. The parties hereto further agree that this Fee Agreement may be interpreted or modified as may be necessary or appropriate in order to give proper application of this Fee Agreement to such tangible property without such construction or modification constituting an amendment to this Fee Agreement, and thus not requiring any additional action by the County Council. The County Manager, after consulting with the County Attorney, shall be and hereby is authorized to make such modifications, if any, as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith. Such leased property shall constitute a part of the Project for all purposes of this Agreement, including the calculation of the Clawback Minimum Requirements, removal, replacement, and termination, and such Sponsor shall be deemed to be a party to this Agreement provided, however, that no Sponsor shall be liable for any payments pursuant to Section 4.2(b) hereof, which shall remain the Company's liability.

Pursuant to the Act and subject to Section 4.2 hereof, the Company and the County hereby agree that the Company shall identify annually those assets which are eligible for FILOT payments under the Act and which the Company selects for such treatment by listing such assets on the applicable schedule in its annual PT-300 form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property and therefore be exempt from all *ad valorem* taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company shall not be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company does not meet the Act Minimum Investment Requirement, this Fee Agreement shall be terminated as provided in Section 4.2 hereof.

<u>Section 3.2</u> <u>Diligent Completion</u>. The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period.

Section 3.3 Filings and Reports.

- (a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor, and the County Treasurer, a copy of its most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 30 days following delivery thereof to the Department.
- (b) The Company shall cause the filing of a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor of the County and any partner county, if the Project is placed in a joint county industrial and business park, and the Department within 30 days after the date of execution and delivery hereof by all parties hereto.
- (c) The Company agrees to maintain complete books and records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project. Such books and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made by the Company in accordance with Section 3.3(a) or (b) above with respect to property placed in service as part of the Project.
- (d) Whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or financing entity to file or produce any reports, notices, returns, or other documents related to this transaction while this Fee Agreement is in effect, the Company shall promptly furnish to the County through the County Administrator the completed form of such required documents, to the extent that the Company possesses the information necessary to complete the documents. In the event of a failure or refusal of the Company to comply with this provision, within 30 days after presentation of a statement by the County, the Company shall pay the attorney's fees the County incurs in producing and filing such documents and any fees, penalties, assessments, or damages that the law imposes upon the County by reason of its failure duly to file or produce such documents.

ARTICLE IV

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES

Section 4.1 Negotiated Payments.

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the Act, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of *ad valorem* taxes to the County with respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 12-44-50(A)(1) of the Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the Payments in Lieu of Taxes in accordance therewith. The Company shall make payments in lieu of *ad valorem* taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company shall make payments in lieu of *ad valorem* taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and payable and subject to penalty

assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the County for *ad valorem* taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual Payments in Lieu of Taxes shall be in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures that the Act requires):

- Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any Real Property and Improvements without regard to depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the Act defines such term, that the Company obtains by construction or purchase in an arms length transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary obsolescence shall be allowable. The fair market value of the Real Property for the first year of the Fee Term remains the fair market value of the Real Property for the life of the Fee Term. The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax exemptions that State law would allow to the Company if the property were taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the Act specifically disallows.
- Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 19 years thereafter.
- Step 3: Use a fixed millage rate equal to the millage rate in effect on June 30, 2019, which is 234.3 mills, as Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the Act provides, during the Exemption Period against the taxable value to determine the amount of the Payments in Lieu of Taxes due during the Exemption Period on the payment dates that the County prescribes for such payments. [COUNTY: PLEASE CONFIRM MILLAGE.]
- (b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction or an agreement of the parties determines that the calculation of the minimum Payment in Lieu of Taxes applicable to this transaction is to be other than by the procedure herein, the payment shall be reset at the minimum permitted level so determined.

In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further appeal is allowable declares the Act and/or the herein-described Payments in Lieu of Taxes invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof and so as to afford the Company with the benefits to be derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company a strong inducement to locate the Project in the County. If the Economic Development

Property is deemed to be subject to *ad valorem* taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company shall pay the County regular *ad valorem* taxes from the date of termination, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company. Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company, with respect to a year or years for which the Company previously remitted Payments in Lieu of Taxes to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable tax exemptions to which the Company would be entitled if the Economic Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and (ii) be reduced by the total amount of Payments in Lieu of Taxes the Company had made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, neither the Company nor any successor in title or interest shall be required to pay FILOT payments and *ad valorem* taxes for the same property over the same period in question.

- (c) The County's right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.
- (d) In the event the Company should fail to make any of the payments that this Article IV requires, the item or installment so in default shall continue as an obligation of the Company until the Company shall have fully paid the amount, and the Company agrees to pay the same with interest thereon at a rate of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due and, in the case of FILOT payments, subject to the penalties the law provides until payment.

Section 4.2 Failure to Achieve Act Minimum Investment Requirement.

- (a) In the event that the cost of the Economic Development Property (without regard to depreciation) that the Company acquires does not reach the Act Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall terminate as to such entity failing to meet the minimum investment level. In such event, the Company shall pay the County an amount (the "Additional Payment") pursuant to the Act which is equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and abatements to which the Company would be entitled in such a case, through and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT payments the Company has made with respect to the Economic Development Property through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be subject to the minimum amount of interest that the Act may require.
- (b) The County's right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.
- (c) In the event the Company should fail to make any of the payments that this Article IV requires, the item or installment so in default shall continue as an obligation of the

Company until the Company shall have fully paid the amount, and the Company agrees to pay the same with interest thereon at a rate of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was due and, in the case of FILOT payments, subject to the penalties the law provides until payment.

- Section 4.3 Payments in Lieu of Taxes on Replacement Property. If the Company elects to replace any Removed Components and to substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic Development Property, or the Company otherwise utilizes Replacement Property, then, pursuant and subject to Section 12-44-60 of the Act, the Company shall make statutory payments in lieu of *ad valorem* taxes with regard to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following:
 - Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the Economic Development Property it is replacing. Replacement Property is deemed to replace the oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service. Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the same property tax year. More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic Development Property. To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for Economic Development Property were not allowable. Replacement Property is entitled to treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and
 - (ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the Fee shall be recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the Fee shall utilize the millage rate and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the Fee.

Section 4.4 Reductions in Payments of Taxes Upon Removal, Condemnation, or Casualty. In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property or any Phase of the Economic Development Property or that Phase of the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic Development Property or that Phase of the Economic Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.1(a) hereof; provided, however, that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project based on the original income tax basis of the Equipment, Real Property, and Improvements contained therein, without deduction for depreciation, is less than the Act Minimum Investment Requirement, beginning with the first payment thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the end of the Fee Term, the Company shall no longer be entitled to the

incentive provided in Section 4.1, and the Company shall therefore commence to pay regular *ad valorem* taxes on the Economic Development Property part of the Project.

- Section 4.5 Place and Allocation of Payments in Lieu of Taxes. The Company shall make the above-described Payments in Lieu of Taxes directly to the County in accordance with applicable law.
- Section 4.6 Removal of Equipment. Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions hereof, the Company shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components or Phases of the Project from the Project in its sole discretion with the result that said components or Phases shall no longer be considered a part of the Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to the terms of this Fee Agreement to the fullest extent allowed by the Act, as amended. Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is scrapped or sold or it is removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to *ad valorem* property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to *ad valorem* property taxes.

Section 4.7 <u>Damage or Destruction of Economic Development Property.</u>

- (a) <u>Election to Terminate</u>. In the event the Economic Development Property is damaged by fire, explosion, or any other casualty, the Company shall be entitled to terminate this Fee Agreement. The Company shall only be required to make FILOT payments as to all or any part of the tax year in which the damage or casualty occurs to the extent property subject to *ad valorem* taxes would otherwise have been subject to such taxes under the same circumstances for the period in question.
- (b) <u>Election to Rebuild</u>. In the event the Economic Development Property is damaged by fire, explosion, or any other casualty, and if the Company does not elect to terminate this Fee Agreement, the Company may commence to restore the Economic Development Property with such reductions or enlargements in the scope of the Economic Development Property, changes, alterations, and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property) as may be desired by the Company. All such restorations and replacements shall be considered, to the fullest extent permitted by law and this Fee Agreement, substitutions of the destroyed portions of the Economic Development Property and shall be considered part of the Economic Development Property for all purposes hereof, including, but not limited to, any amounts due by the Company to the County under Section 4.1 hereof.
- (c) <u>Election to Remove</u>. In the event the Company elects not to terminate this Fee Agreement pursuant to subsection (a) and elects not to rebuild pursuant to subsection (b), the damaged portions of the Economic Development Property shall be treated as Removed Components.

Section 4.8 Condemnation.

(a) <u>Complete Taking</u>. If at any time during the Fee Term title to or temporary use of the Economic Development Property should become vested in a public or quasi-public authority by virtue of the exercise of a taking by condemnation, inverse condemnation, or the right of eminent domain; by voluntary transfer under threat of such taking; or by a taking of title to a

portion of the Economic Development Property which renders continued use or occupancy of the Economic Development Property commercially unfeasible in the judgment of the Company, the Company shall have the option to terminate this Fee Agreement by sending written notice to the County within a reasonable period of time following such vesting. The Company shall only be required to make FILOT payments as to all or any part of the tax year in which the taking occurs to the extent property subject to *ad valorem* taxes would otherwise have been subject to such taxes under the same circumstances for the period in question.

- (b) <u>Partial Taking</u>. In the event of a partial taking of the Economic Development Property or a transfer in lieu thereof, the Company may elect: (i) to terminate this Fee Agreement; (ii) subject to the Act and the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, to repair and restore the Economic Development Property, with such reductions or enlargements in the scope of the Economic Development Property, changes, alterations, and modifications (including the substitution and addition of other property) as the Company may desire, and all such changes, alterations, and modifications shall be considered as substitutions of the taken parts of the Economic Development Property; or (iii) to treat the portions of the Economic Development Property so taken as Removed Components.
- (c) The Company shall only be required to make FILOT payments as to all or any part of the tax year in which the taking occurs to the extent property subject to *ad valorem* taxes would otherwise have been subject to such taxes under the same circumstances for the period in question.

Section 4.9 Confidentiality/Limitation on Access to Project. The County acknowledges and understands that the Company utilizes confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and techniques (herein "Confidential Information") and that any disclosure of Confidential Information concerning the Company's operations may result in substantial harm to the Company and could thereby have a significant detrimental impact on the Company's employees and also upon the County. The Company acknowledges that the County is subject to the Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and information on request absent an exemption. For these reasons, the Company shall clearly label all Confidential Information it delivers to the County "Confidential Information." Therefore, the County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor of the County shall (i) request or be entitled to receive any such Confidential Information, or (ii) disclose or otherwise divulge any such Confidential Information to any other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so by law; provided, however, that the County shall have no less rights concerning information relating to the Project and the Company than concerning any other property or property taxpayer in the County, and, provided further, that the confidentiality of such confidential or proprietary information is clearly disclosed to the County in writing as previously described. Prior to disclosing any Confidential Information, subject to the requirements of law, the Company may require the execution of reasonable, individual, confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements by any officers, employees, or agents of the County or any supporting or cooperating governmental agencies who would gather, receive, or review such information. In the event that the County is required to disclose any Confidential Information obtained from the Company to any third party, the County agrees to provide the Company with as much advance notice as possible of such requirement before making such

disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with any attempts by the Company to obtain judicial or other relief from such disclosure requirement.

Section 4.10 Assignment. With the prior written consent of the County or a subsequent written ratification by the County, which consent or ratification the County will not unreasonably withhold unless Section 12-44-120 of the Act or any successor provision expressly does not require consent, and in accordance with the Act, the Company may assign this Fee Agreement in whole or in part. The Company agrees to notify the County and the Department of the identity of such transferee within 60 days of the transfer. In case of a transfer, the transferee assumes the transferor's basis in the Project for purposes of calculating the Fee. No approval is required for transfers to sponsor affiliates or other financing related transfers, as defined in the Act.

Section 4.11 No Double Payment; Future Changes in Legislation.

(a) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, and except as expressly required by law, neither the Company nor any Sponsor shall ever be required to make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes in addition to a regular property tax payment in the same year over the same piece of property, nor shall the Company or any Sponsor be required to make a Payment in Lieu of Taxes on property in cases where, absent this Fee Agreement, property taxes would otherwise not be due on such property.

In case there is any legislation enacted which provides for more favorable treatment for property to qualify as, or for the calculation of the fee related to, Economic Development Property under Sections 4.4, 4.6, 4.7, 4.8, or the calculation of the Investment Period, the County agrees to give expedient and full consideration to such legislation, with a view to allow for such more favorable treatment or calculation.

Section 4.12 Administration Expenses.

(a) The Company agrees to pay the reasonable and necessary expenses that the County incurs with respect to the execution and administration of this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable and actual attorney's fees (the "Administration Expenses"); provided, however, that no such expense shall be an Administration Expense until the County has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the reason for its incurrence.

ARTICLE V

DEFAULT

- Section 5.1 Events of Default. The following shall be "Events of Default" under this Fee Agreement, and the term "Events of Default" shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the following occurrences:
- (a) Failure by the Company to make the Payments in Lieu of Taxes described in Section 4.1 hereof, which failure shall not have been cured within 30 days following receipt of written notice thereof from the County; *provided, however*, that the Company shall be entitled to all redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or

- (b) A representation or warranty made by the Company which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or
- (c) Failure by the Company to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice from the County to the Company specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period during which the Company is diligently pursuing corrective action; or
- (d) A representation or warranty made by the County which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or
- (e) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice from the Company to the County specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action; or
 - (f) A cessation of operations at the Project by the Company.

Section 5.2 Remedies on Default.

- (a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of the following remedial actions:
 - (1) terminate the Fee Agreement; or
 - (2) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect the amounts due hereunder. In no event shall the Company be liable to the County or otherwise for monetary damages resulting from the Company's failure to meet the Act Minimum Investment Requirement, other than as expressly set forth herein.

In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give rise to a lien for tax purposes as Section 12-44-90 of the Act provides. In this regard, and notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended) provides with regard to the enforced collection of *ad valorem* taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder.

- (b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, the Company may take one or more of the following actions:
 - (1) bring an action for specific enforcement;
 - (2) terminate the Fee Agreement; or

- (3) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law.
- Section 5.3 Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder, should a party be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement, the successful party shall be entitled, within 30 days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred. The Company further agrees to pay reasonable legal fees and expenses and other expenses of the County.

Section 5.4 No Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the waiving party hereto.

ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 6.1 Notices. Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such provision shall control:

IF TO THE COMPANY:

Proje	et Burnt Church	
Attn:	I	

IF TO THE COUNTY:

Beaufort County, South Carolina Attn: County Administrator P.O. Box 1228 Beaufort, SC 29901-1228

WITH A COPY TO:

Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. Attn: William R. Johnson P.O. Box 11889 Columbia, SC 29211

Section 6.2 <u>Binding Effect</u>. This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Company, the County, and their respective successors and assigns. In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of the County has been transferred.

<u>Section 6.3</u> <u>Counterparts</u>. This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument.

<u>Section 6.4</u> <u>Governing Law</u>. This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of South Carolina.

<u>Section 6.5</u> <u>Headings</u>. The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement.

<u>Section 6.6</u> <u>Amendments</u>. The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any agreement or agreements entered into between the parties.

Section 6.7 Further Assurance. From time to time, and at the expense of the Company, to the extent any expense is incurred, the County agrees to execute and deliver to the Company such additional instruments as the Company may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and reasonably within the purposes and scope of the Act and Fee Agreement to effectuate the purposes of this Fee Agreement.

<u>Invalidity</u>; <u>Change in Laws</u>. In the event that the inclusion of property as Section 6.8 Economic Development Property or any other issue is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the Act, to the extent not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof. If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall be unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer the Company the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the Act, to locate the Project in the County. In case a change in the Act or South Carolina laws eliminates or reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and the Fee incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full consideration to reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the Company with the benefits of such change in the Act or South Carolina laws.

<u>Section 6.9</u> <u>Force Majeure</u>. The Company shall not be responsible for any delays or non-performance caused in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, by strikes, accidents, freight embargoes, fires, floods, inability to obtain materials, conditions arising from governmental orders or regulations, war or national emergency, acts of God, and any other cause, similar or dissimilar, beyond the Company's reasonable control.

Section 6.10 Termination by Company. The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part of the Project upon providing the County with 30 days' notice; provided, however, that (i) any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party hereto; and (ii) any provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu of taxation that would apply absent this agreement. The Company's obligation to make fee in lieu of tax payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination pursuant to this section.

Section 6.11 Entire Understanding. This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof.

<u>Section 6.12</u> <u>Waiver</u>. Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party.

Section 6.13 <u>Business Day</u>. In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or given on the following

business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest shall accrue in the interim.

Section 6.14 <u>Limitation of Liability</u>. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur hereunder, including for the payment of money shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or a debt or general obligation of the County; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for *mandamus* or specific performance.

ARTICLE VII

INDEMNIFICATION, INDIVIDUAL LIABILITY

Section 7.1 Indemnification Covenants.

- (a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements with the County (i) the Company shall agree to indemnify and save the County, its members, officers, employees, servants, and agents (collectively, the "Indemnified Parties"), harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, or corporation arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project during the Fee Term, and, the Company further shall indemnify and save the Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Fee Term from (A) any condition of the Project, (B) any breach or default on the part of the Company in the performance of any of its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (C) any act of negligence of the Company, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees, or licensees, (D) except in such cases where the County has released the Company, any act of negligence of any assignee or sublessee of the Company, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees, or licensees of any assignee or sublessee of Company, and/or (E) any environmental violation, condition, or effect. The Company shall indemnify and save the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution, or proceeding.
- (b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the Fee, by reason of the execution of this Fee Agreement, by reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company, or by reason of the County's relationship to the Project or the operation of the Project by the Company, including all claims, liabilities, or losses arising in connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the County, its agents, officers, or employees should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Company shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding; provided, however, that such indemnity shall not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to

- (i) the gross negligent acts or omissions or willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers, or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee Agreement by the County.
- (c) The above-referenced indemnification covenants shall be considered included in and incorporated by reference in subsequent documents after the delivery of this Fee Agreement which the County is requested to sign on behalf of the Company with respect to the Project, and any other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be construed to reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants.
- (d) No termination of this Fee Agreement pursuant to any provision elsewhere in this Fee Agreement shall relieve the Company of its liability and obligations to make the payments required by this Section 7.1, all of which shall survive any such termination.
- Section 7.2 No Liability of County Personnel. All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County contained herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements, and obligations of the County and shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any officer, agent, servant, or employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing body of the County or any officer, agent, servant, or employee of the County, and no recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any officer, agent, servant, or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity.

(Signature Page Follows)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Administrator and to be attested by the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written.

BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

	Signature:Name:Title:
ATTEST:	
Signature:	
Name: Fitle: Clerk to County Council	
	PROJECT BURNT CHURCH
	Signature:
	Name:

EXHIBIT A LEGAL DESCRIPTION

[COMPANY: PLEASE PROVIDE LEGAL DESCRIPTION.]



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) # 061719 for Coordinated Comprehensive Master Planning Services between Beaufort County, the Town of Port Royal, and the Town of Bluffton

Item Title:

Council Committee:
Natural Resources
Meeting Date:
September 16, 2019
Company that December (Norman and Title)
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Robert Merchant, Community Development Deputy Director
Issues for Consideration:
Beaufort County issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) from qualified firms to provide coordinated comprehensive planning services for Beaufort County and The Town of Port Royal, and The Town of Bluffton. The intent of these services is to write and adopt a place-based Comprehensive Plan; which comports with the requirements of the State of South Carolina and meets the long range planning needs of the individual jurisdictions. Since the publication of the RFQ, the Town of Bluffton announced that it is delaying the update of its comprehensive plan and would not participate.
Points to Consider:
See above.
Funding & Liability Factors:
The total cost of the contract is \$238,370. Beaufort County will contribute \$178,370; the Town of Port Royal will contribute \$60,000. The funding for Beaufort County's contribution will be split between FY2020 and FY 2021.
Council Options:
Award or not award the contract.
Recommendation:
Award the contract to Design Workshop.



COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

102 Industrial Village Road, Bldg 2—Post Office Drawer 1228 Beaufort, South Carolina 29901-1228

TO: Councilman Alice G. Howard, Chairman, Natural Resources Committee

FROM: Dave Thomas, CPPO, Purchasing Director

SUBJ: Request for Qualifications (RFQ) # 061719 for Coordinated Comprehensive Master

Planning Services between Beaufort County, the Town of Port Royal, and the Town of

Bluffton

DATE: September 16, 2019

BACKGROUND: Beaufort County issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) from qualified firms to provide coordinated comprehensive planning services for Beaufort County and The Town of Port Royal, and The Town of Bluffton. The intent of these services is to write and adopt a place-based Comprehensive Plan; which comports with the requirements of the State of South Carolina and meets the long range planning needs of the individual jurisdictions. Since the publication of the RFQ, the Town of Bluffton announced that it is delaying the update of its comprehensive plan and would not participate.

VENDOR INFORMATION AND RANK ORDER	
1. Design Workshop, Inc., Asheville, NC	\$295,000*
2. Benchmark, Charlotte, NC	\$300,000
3. Opticos Design, Inc., Berkeley, CA	\$525,000
4. McBride Dale Clarion, Cincinnati, OH	\$300,000

^{*}The Budget for Design Workshop has been revised to \$238,370 to reflect Bluffton not participating in the plan.

FUNDING:

- 1. FY 2020 Beaufort County Community Development Department Comprehensive Plan line item # 1001132-51160 (Amount \$89,185).
- 2. FY 2021 Beaufort County Community Development Department Comprehensive Plan line item # 1001132-51160 (Amount \$89,185).
- 3. Town of Port Royal \$60,000

FOR ACTION: Natural Resources Committee meeting occurring September 16, 2019.

RECOMMENDATION: The Purchasing Department recommends that the Natural Resources Committee and County Council approve the contract award of \$238,370 to Design Workshop, Inc. for the aformetioned services.

CC: Ashley Jacobs, County Administrator
Alicia Holland, Assistant County Administrator, Finance
Monica Spells, Assistant County Administrator, Civic Engagement and Outreach
Eric Greenway, Director of Planning

Attachments: RFQ Scoring Summary

Beaufort County Coordinat Bluffton, South Carolina	ed Comprehensive Pl	an with The Town	of Port Royal and t	the Town of
RFQ 061719				
Summary Score Sheet				
Evaluators	Name of Company	Name of Company	Name of Company	Name of Company
	<u>Benchmark</u>	Design Workshop	McBride Dale Clarion	<u>Opticos</u>
L. Bridges	68	80	68	60
E. Greenway	75	87	72	76
R. Merchant	76	94	80	81
B. Semmler	69	67	55	59
TOTALS:	288	328	275	276
1. Design Workshop	328			
2. Benchmark	288			
3. Opticos	276			
4. McBride Dale Clarion	275			



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Audit Committee
Council Committee:
Finance Committee
Moeting Data
Meeting Date:
March 4, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Christopher Inglese, staff attorney and Alicia Holland, CFO
Issues for Consideration:
 how many and type of members how often to meet or at election of committee chair purpose and duties of committee
Points to Consider:
Timeline for reports and recommendations
Funding 0 Linkility Footows
Funding & Liability Factors:
no source of funding or amounts have been identified
Council Options:

continue to deliberate the details of a finance committee especially funding the activities of the committee; approve the ordinance establishing the Audit Committee; deny the ordinance; approve with amendments

Recommendation:

Once funding amounts and source are identified, move forward with approval of the ordinance establishing an Audit Committee.

ORDINANCE 2019/

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE FINANCE COMMITTEE AS THE INTERNAL AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING FOR THE PURPOSES, POWERS, DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS AS SET FORTH BELOW FOR INTERNAL AUDITS.

WHEREAS, the County finds that establishing an Audit Committee will provide for additional oversight and opportunities for transparency in government accounting; and

WHEREAS, the public interest is served when there are appropriate procedures and policies for assuring the continued success of County government financial practices; and

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Finance Department was recently awarded the Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and County Council desires to provide support to staff to continue to improve the County's finance policies and procedures; and

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Code of Ordinances provides Section 2-402 for the establishment of an internal audit unit with reporting duties directly to the Administrator, however the Audit Unit has not been active for the past several years; and

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of taxpayers, and indeed a duty of the elected members of County Council, to have direct involvement in financial oversight of the County operating budget; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee did discuss and unanimously approved moving forward with establishing the Finance Committee as the Internal Audit Committee to provide oversight, direction, priorities, and overall guide the internal audit process; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee met September ______, 2019 and did discuss and voted to approve moving forward with establishing the Finance Committee as the Internal Audit Committee; and

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of Beaufort County to establish the Finance Committee as the Internal Audit Committee that will report directly to the County Council from time to time and as needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that Beaufort County Council, duly assembled, does hereby delete in its entirety "Section 2-402 Establishment of internal audit unit" and insert in its place and stead the following:

"Section 2-402 Finance Committee of County Council is the Internal Audit Committee.

- (1) *Creation*. The Finance Committee of County Council is hereby established as the Internal Audit Committee (the "Committee") which shall have the purposes, powers, duties and functions established below.
- (2) *Membership; terms*. The Committee shall be comprised of all members of the Finance Committee. Other members of Council may participate as ex-officio members. Ex-officio members shall have the same privileges as committee members with respect to making motions, debates and votes, however ex-officio members need not be counted for establishing a quorum.
- (3) *Internal Audit* shall mean a review of the County's mechanisms, rules, and procedures implemented to ensure the integrity of financial and accounting information, to promote accountability and prevent fraud. Internal audits are intended to ensure compliance with laws and regulations and provide timely financial reporting and data collection. Internal audits may result in recommendations for improving operational efficiency and effectiveness of financial processes and procedures.

(4) Duties, Purpose and responsibilities.

- a. The Committee shall develop a proposed internal audit schedule and shall have the authority, within its budgeted allocation, to move forward with internal audit projects. The purpose of the internal audits shall be to identify opportunities for improving efficiency and effectiveness in the County's financial practices.
- b. The audit schedule shall include areas of interest to be reviewed, their priority, and the timelines for completion. The audit schedule shall also include interim audit progress updates, audit follow-ups, and address special needs for audits of specific areas requiring additional resources or extended timelines.
- c. The Committee shall oversee the internal audit process. The Committee's oversight shall include, among other things, selection of independent consultants for performing internal audits, directing the consultants, establishing timelines for consultant reviews, establishing the framework for internal audit projects, and overseeing implementation of recommendations from any reports. The Committee shall be responsible for coordinating between the work of the Administrator's staff, contractually hired consultants and any other party as necessary to fulfill the duties, purpose and responsibilities of the Committee.
- d. The Committee shall review organizational policies and procedures regarding all areas of County operations for which County funds are levied, collected, expended, or otherwise used, and make recommendations to Council for approval by majority vote. The Committee review shall include departments or offices reporting to the County Administrator, departments or offices headed by elected or appointed

officials, millage agencies, legislatively appointed Commissions receiving County funding, nonprofit organizations receiving funds from the County, and any other organization receiving any type of funding for any purpose from the County.

- e. The Committee shall oversee the responsibilities of the independent consultants hired by the County for assisting with Internal Audits. The Committee shall work closely with the independent consultant selected, the Administrator, and appropriate staff for review and recommendations regarding all aspects of the County's financial practices.
- f. The Committee shall provide an annual report to full Council after the completion of each fiscal year budget but no later than an October meeting of the Finance Committee. The report shall summarize the findings of the independent consultant's internal audits and identify any recommendations to be brought forward to Council. The report shall include a detail plan for implementing the recommendations including costs of implementation.
- g. The Committee shall annually review the Financial Policies and Procedures manual and the practices of the County departments, and make recommendations for updates and improvements. Any recommendations made shall include a detail plan for implementing the recommendations including costs of implementation.
- (5) Every three years, the Administrator shall cause a Request for Proposal/Qualifications to be publicly advertised. Respondents meeting the minimum requirements of the RFP/RFQ shall be pre-qualified and available to the Committee for Internal Audits as needed. The Committee shall select an independent consultant based on a number of factors including but not limited to: the special needs of the particular project; any specialized knowledge or experience of a pre-qualified consultant; the ability to complete the project in a desired timeline or other factors. The Committee shall establish selection criteria with input from the Administrator and appropriate staff.
- (6) In the performance of these duties, the Committee and the selected independent consultant, shall have access to all such information and records regarding the financial activities and transactions of all departments or offices reporting to the County Administrator, departments or offices headed by elected or appointed officials, millage agencies, legislatively appointed Commissions receiving County funding, nonprofit organizations receiving funds from the County, and any other organization receiving any type of funding for any purpose from the County.

(7) Effective date.	This Ordinance No. 2019/_	shall become effective immediately upon
its adoption.		

Adopted this	day of _	, 2019.
--------------	----------	---------

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY

BY:		
	Stewart H. Rodman, Chairman	
	Beaufort County Council	

ATTEST:

Sarah W., Clerk to Council

Chronology

- Third and final reading occurred
- Public hearing occurred
- Second reading occurred
- First reading approval occurred
- Finance Committee discussion and recommendation

AIKEN COUNTY

Sec. 2-50 - Audit committee charter.

- (a) Purpose. The purpose of this audit committee charter is to assist the council in fulfilling its fiduciary oversight responsibilities for the:
 - (1) Financial reporting process;
 - (2) System of risk management;
 - (3) System of internal control;
 - (4) Internal audit process;
 - (5) External audit of the financial statements;
 - (6) Engagements with other external audit firms;
 - (7) Organization's Processes for Monitoring Compliance with Laws and Regulations and the Ethics Policy, Code of Conduct and Fraud Policy;
 - (8) Special investigations and whistleblower mechanism;
 - (9) Audit committee management and reporting responsibilities; and
 - (10) Comprehensive communication responsibility.
- (b) Authority. The audit committee has authority, vested by Aiken County Council, to conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of responsibility. At the beginning of each fiscal year, the audit committee shall create an audit plan for the fiscal year and submit it to the county council for approval. The plan shall be carried out unless other matters of concern, brought to the attention of the committee, divert audit staff onto engagements outside the scope of the original plan. Any engagement not included in the yearly audit plan shall be submitted to council for approval prior to commencing unless time limitations would make it necessary to begin the engagement prior to the next county council meeting; at which time written justification must be submitted to the full Council for the reason(s) for the time sensitivity of the engagement and council approval must be obtained to continue the engagement. The Aiken County Council may also refer items directly to the retained audit staff by majority vote.
 - (1) Financial reporting process.
 - a. Oversee the reporting of all financial information.
 - b. Resolve any disagreements between management, the external auditor and/or the internal auditor regarding financial reporting.
 - (2) System of risk management.
 - a. Provide the policy and framework for an effective system of risk management, and provide the mechanisms for periodic assessment of the system of risk management, including risks of the information systems, and risks of business relationships with significant vendors and consultants.
 - Oversee all consultants and experts that make recommendations concerning the risk management structure and internal control structure.
 - (3) System of internal control.
 - a. Provide the policy and framework for an effective system of internal controls, and provide the mechanisms for periodic assessment of the system of internal controls, including information systems, and internal control over purchases from significant vendors and consultants.
 - Ensure that contracts with external service providers contain appropriate record-keeping and audit language.

c. Seek any information it requires from employees-all of whom are directed to cooperate with the committee's requests, or the requests of internal or external parties working for the audit committee. These parties include the internal auditors, all external auditors, consultants, investigators and any other specialists working for the audit committee.

(4) Internal audit process.

- a. Procure, select, and oversee the work of the internal audit contract subject to the review and approval of county council.
- b. Serve as the primary liaison and provide the appropriate forum for handling all matters related to audits, examinations, investigations or inquiries of the state auditor and other appropriate state or federal agencies.
- c. The term of the audit engagement shall be for a period not to exceed five (5) years and shall be subject to annual review based on then existing conditions. Successful completion of an engagement shall not preclude the audit firm from consideration for the next audit engagement.
- d. The auditor shall be selected and recommended to county council by the audit committee on the primary basis of matching the auditor's qualifications to the needs of the county. Qualifications being approximately equal, proposed audit fees will be the secondary consideration.
- e. The agreement between the county and the audit firm shall be in the form of a written contract. The contract shall include the request for proposal as an appendix to the written contract, and all issues addressed in the request for proposal are required as part of the contract.
- f. Change in leadership of any county department, constitutional office, or elected official will require an internal audit.

(5) External audit of the financial statements.

- Appoint, compensate, and oversee the work of the certified public accounting firm employed by the organization to audit the financial statements.
- b. Pre-approve all auditing, other attest and non-audit services performed by the external financial statement audit firm prior to additional charges, outside of the original engagement subject to the review and approval of county council.
- c. The term of the audit engagement shall be for a period not to exceed five (5) years and shall be subject to annual review based on then existing conditions. Successful completion of an engagement shall not preclude the audit firm from consideration for the next audit engagement.
- d. The auditor shall be selected and recommended to county council by the audit committee on the primary basis of matching the auditor's qualifications to the needs of the county. Qualifications being approximately equal, proposed audit fees will be the secondary consideration.
- e. The agreement between the county and the audit firm shall be in the form of a written contract. The contract shall include the request for proposal as an appendix to the written contract, and all issues addressed in the request for proposal are required as part of the contract.
- (6) Engagements with other external audit firms. Appoint, compensate, and oversee subject to the review and approval of county council the work of any other certified public accounting firm employed by the organization to perform any audits or agreed-upon-procedures other than the audit of the financial statements.
- (7) Organization's processes for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the ethics policy, code of conduct and fraud policy.

- a. Provide the policy and framework for compliance with laws and regulations, and provide the mechanisms for periodic assessment of compliance, including compliance by significant vendors and consultants.
- Communicate with the council regarding the organization's policy on ethics, code of conduct and fraud policy as it relates to internal control, financial reporting and all auditing activities.
- (8) Special investigations and whistleblower mechanism.
 - a. Subject to review and approval by county council, retain independent counsel, accountants, or other specialists to advise the committee or assist in the conduct of an investigation.
 - b. Ensure creation of and maintenance of an appropriate whistleblower mechanism for reporting of financial statement fraud and other fraud and inappropriate activities.
- (9) Audit committee management and reporting responsibilities.
 - Receive and review reports on all public disclosures related to the purpose, authority and responsibilities of the audit committee.
 - Report to the council on the activities, findings and recommendations of the audit committee.
- (10) Comprehensive communication responsibility. Meet with the organization's officers, external auditors, internal auditors, outside counsel and/or specialists, as necessary.
- (c) Composition. The audit committee shall consist of three (3) members of county council approved by the chairman, with the county council chairman, county administrator, and the finance director serving as ex-officio.
- (d) Meetings. The committee will meet at least four (4) times a year, with authority to convene additional meetings, as circumstances require. All committee members are expected to attend each meeting, in person. Meeting notices will be provided to interested parties in conformance with applicable laws, regulations, customs and practices. The committee will invite members of management, external auditors, internal auditors and/or others to attend meetings and provide pertinent information, as necessary. It may hold executive sessions as provided by law. Meeting agendas will be prepared and provided in advance to members, along with appropriate briefing materials. Minutes will be prepared and maintained.
- (e) Procurement. All procurements initiated or recommended by the audit committee are subject to the applicable provisions of Article VIII, Purchasing and Contracting, of the County Code, including section 2-707.5

(Ord. No. 09-06-13, § 1, 6-16-09)



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item Summary

Item Title:
Beaufort County Airport Wetlands Mitigation - FAA Reimbursement
Council Committee:
Finance Committee
Meeting Date:
September 3, 2019
Committee Presenter (Name and Title):
Jon Rembold, Airports Director
Issues for Consideration:
DISCUSSION: Wetlands Mitigation - FAA Reimbursement
Points to Consider:
FAA may have some amount of discretionary funds to support a portion of Beaufort County Airport's Wetlands Mitigation. This is a discussion relative to FAA's ability to support the mitigation required by the 2002 permit that was associated with the construction of the partial parallel taxiway.
Funding & Liability Factors:
Potential funding limitations
Council Options:
Information only
Recommendation:
Information only